
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 1 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
FRIDAY, OCTOBER 2,2009/2:00 P.M. 

Call to Order at 2:00 P.M. 

Present: Dr. Irving Rosenbaum - Outgoing Town Manager 
Frank R. Spence -Incoming Town Manager 
Mayor David Browning - Town Council 
Clete J. Saunier, P.E. - LGWCD Administrator (Meeting Facilitator) 
David DeMarois - LGWCD Board Chairman 

Also Present: Lynnette R. Ballard - LGWCD Administrative Secretary 

Pledge of Allegiance I Invocation led by Mr. Saunier. 

SUBJECT: AGENDA APPROVAL. There were no additions, deletions, or substitutions 
to the Agenda. 

MOTION: Dr. Irv Rosenbaum made a motion to approve the Agenda. David DeMarois 
seconded the motion. 

ACTION: MOTION PASSED 4 TO O. 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM AUGUST 28, 2009 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION COMMITTEE (lGC) MEETING. 
Mr. Saunier asked for approval of the minutes from the August 28, 2009 
Intergovernmental Coordination Committee meeting. 

MOTION: Dr. Irv Rosenbaum made a motion to approve the minutes from the August 
28, 2009 Intergovernmental Coordination Committee meeting. Clete Saunier 

ACTION: 

seconded the motion. . 

Mr. Saunier complimented Lynnette Ballard for consistently doing a nice job 
in preparing the meeting minutes. Dr. Rosenbaum and Mayor Browning 
agreed. 

MOTION PASSED 4 TO O. 

1 



SUBJECT: WATER CONSERVATION AND FIRE SUPPRESSION. Mr. Saunier referred 
to the agenda memo written by Matthew Lippman, Town Clerk. Mr. Saunier 
stated since December 2007, the Town and District have been trying to find 
alternative sources of water conservation and fire suppression for the 
District. Suggestions were made for static wells; however, static wells were 
ruled out by Palm Beach County Fire-Rescue because rescue personnel 
would not be able to draft water with the equipment on their trucks. 

Mr. Saunier stated the IGC Committee previously discussed reused water 
mains being looped in the system, which might be a possible option. He 
stated the IGC Committee has also discussed the installation of onsite 
generators and pumps to pump water as it was stationed only to be used for 
that purpose. This option would be very costly and would require 
condemnation of land, regular maintenance, and liability. Mr. Saunier stated 
several years ago, the District conducted a pilot test with dry hydrants. 
However, Palm Beach County Fire-Rescue representatives determined that 
Fire-Rescue personnel w,ould not be able to draft from the dry hydrants. 

Mr. Saunier stated he has been attending the meetings of the Water Quality 
Task Force which the Palm Beach County League of Cities has coordinated. 
He stated Ken Todd has been appointed the Chair of the Working Group 
Committee of the Task Force. The Working Group is made up of various 
vendors, contractors, engineers, and other experienced professionals. 
Tllese individuals have been tasked with trying to formalize and strategize 
different ways in which water can be better utilized throughout the County 
(particularly north of the C-51 Canal) in order to replenish lower levels of 
control water elevations in other communities within the County. 

Mr. Saunier stated the Working Group is trying to determine what can be 
done in terms of a pilot test to determine the best course of action to provide 
water during recurring drought conditions. The Working Group has been 
looking for examples of projects or existing facilities in place, what could 
happen, and what goals and strategies would be involved to determine 
whether it is a successful test. 

Mr. Saunier added that Jay Foy of Stormwaterj Engineering has suggested 
allowing the adjustment of control water elevations during the wet season 
and dry season months within respective subdrainage basins within the north 
area, north of the C-51 Canal on Southern Boulevard. Mr. Saunier stated 
Mr. Foy has been looking at being able to have that water in place so that 
when it starts to taper off, the water from that one basin could actually be 
pumped to the surrounding community basins for their utilization. Mr. 
Saunier stated he has indicated to Mr. Foy and the Working Group that the 
District loses significant amounts of water every dry season due to seepage; 
and told Mr. Foy if the LGWCD is allowed to retain more water in its canals, 
the District could actually replenish water to the adjacent cOITlmunities 

2 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

(Village of Royal Palm Beach, Seminole Improvement District, and Indian 
Trail Improvement District). Mr. Saunier stated the Working Group listed the 
LGWCD as a potential pilot project. Mr. Saunier stated there might be 
funding for this. He indicated to the Working Group that he is willing to do 
anything that would allow the District to increase its allocation from the C-51 
Canal during the dry season months. 

Mayor David Browning stated Indian Trail Improvement District and Serrlinole 
Improvement District have offered use of sonle of their water to the Town. 
Mayor Browning stated he does not know whether these entities have 
enough water to give away during the dry season. He stated in some of their 
canals (M-1 and M-2 Basin), they typically have more water than they need; 
however, their biggest issue is drainage rather than holding the water. They 
basically made an informal offer that if the Town needs water and has a way 
to tap into their source, the Town is welcome to it. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

PALM BEACH COUNTY WATER UTILITIES DEPARTMENT WESTERN 
SECTION RECLAIMED 36-INCH WATER PIPELINE. Mr. Saunier stated 
there is nothing new to add about this item at this point. He stated he met 
with representatives from Palm Beach County Water Utilities Department, 
Florida Power & Light, South Florida Water Management District, Palm 
Beach County Environmental Resources Management, and Garney 
Construction on August 28, 2009 to discuss the western section reclaimed 
36-inch water pipeline. He stated he sent an e-mail today to the FP&L 
construction manager to inquire as to when they anticipate working in the 
Loxahatchee Groves area. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

SUBJECT: 40TH STREET NORTH I NORTH ROAD CANAL. Mr. Saunier stated at the 
last regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors (September 14,2009), the 
Board discussed the 40th Street North I North Road Canal issue again. Mr. 
Saunier noted this is a very difficult issue. 

Mr. Saunier noted that one title company, Attorney's Title Insurance 
Company, has stated on the record that they are willing to build the bridge 
culvert on behalf of the landowners on 148th Terrace North (between "C" and 
"0" Road Canals, on the north side of North Road Canal) only if the other title 
companies will subrogate with them in sharing the costs to provide the same 
benefit. One of those title corrlpanies has written a letter of denial to one of 

3 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

the affected landowners. Mr. Saunier stated he thinks the title insurance 
companies are waiting for the District to block access on its canal access 
road before they take any action. 

Mr. Saunier stated he is hopeful that some type of mediation process could 
be worked out, where all the title company representatives of the affected 
landowners could meet at the same time, together with District and Town 
representatives and legal counsel to discuss the legal issues involved. 

Mr. Saunier stated the District was not aware of the right-of-way issue 
associated with 40th Street North until North Road Canal was cleaned out, at 
which time the right-of-way was physically identified in the field. 

Mr. Saunier stated the Board may establish a final resolution date forthe 40th 

Street North issue before the end of the calendar year. 

Board Chairman David DeMarois stated, with regard to legal fees, this issue 
is costing the District money that should not be spent on this type of issue. 
The District's Attorney has indicated that the District has the right to block off 
access to the affected landowners, and if the District continues to spend 
public money to solve this issue, the District wi" enter into a questionable 
area. Mr. DeMarois suggested perhaps the Town could provide assistance 
in resolving this issue. 

Dr. Rosenbaum stated that, ultimately, the affected landowners should have 
the responsibility for this issue. 

Mr. Saunier stated it woul'd be a policy decision of the Town Council as to 
whether resolution of this issue would be a public benefit. 

Mayor Browning stated he thinks if representatives of the title insurance 
companies were invited to a meeting regarding this issue, their attendance 
would be favorable. 

Mayor Browning asked Mr. Saunier what the next step in this process should 
be. Mr. Saunier replied he thinks the Board should take the lead on this 
issue, and the Town should be very much in support and present and willing 
to assist the District. Mr. Saunier stated something needs to be done soon 
- the Town has an MREG Plan that states an equestrian trail will be 
constructed along that right-of-way; the District has funding that has been 
sitting aside in a bank account for three years to help fund an equestrian trail. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

4 



SUBJECT: FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES. Byway of written report, Town Clerk Matthew 
Lippman reported that the Town received an e-mail 'from George Webb, 
Palm Beach County Traffic Engineer, outlining the results of the County's 
traffic counts in relation to the Okeechobee Boulevard Roundabout Study. 
Jeff Maxwell, Director of Traffic Engineering and Development for Calvin, 
Giordano & Associates, provided an e-mail response summarizing the 
interpretation of the information provided by Palm Beach County. In 
addition, Jeff Maxwell provided the Finance Advisory and Audit Committee 
with an update at their September 30, 2009 meeting. 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

Mr. Saunier is still working with the Town to submit a grant application for the 
2010 Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program. This is coordinated by the State of 
Florida's Division of Emergency Management. The deadline for submission 
is November 6, 2009. The proposed project is replacement of the two (2) 
bridge culverts at "0" Road and Collecting Canal Road. 

Dr. Rosenbaum stated he will be meeting with Congressman Rooney in the 
near future and suggested the Town continue to work with the 
Congressman's office on this issue. Dr. Rosenbaum stated the Town and 
District should create a prioritized list of projects and have those projects in 
place. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

COORDINATION OF EQUESTRIAN TRAILS. Mr. Saunier stated the Town 
has an MREG Plan, but he is uncertain whether there is a schedule attached 
to the Plan. Mr. Saunier further stated there is an equestrian trail designated 
as such along "F" Road Canal, that goes up to lower North Road (Palm 
Beach County ERM's Royal Palm Beach Pines Natural Area); there is a 
wooden bridge that was designed and built for equestrian usage, and only 
in the event of emergencies did it have a 20-ton weight restriction 
established. The primary purpose of the bridge was for equestrian traffic. 
He stated the equestrians have entered into ERM's wildlife area and wildlife 
Sheriff's deputies have stated if people do not start to assume responsibility 
for going off onto these pristine areas, instead of staying on the designated 
trails, the Sheriff's Office will have to block off access to that area. 

Mayor Browning stated it is 'frustrating that, although the Water Control 
District has gone above and beyond to assist the equestrian community by 
requesting input fron1 equestrian landowners, creating equestrian trails, etc., 
the equestrian community appears not to be cooperating. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

5 



SUBJECT: PORTABLE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS SHELTERS. Mr. Saunier stated 
the District does not have sufficient funds to purchase a portable emergency 
operations shelter for post-disaster recovery. He stated perhaps the Town 
has the necessary funds. He stated it is his understanding that the Town is 
looking into some type of advanced agreements with certain corporations to 
provide emergency shelters. 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

Mayor Browning stated Town Staff is researching information related to 
portable mobile offices that could be leased from Scotsman. He stated he 
has received excellent service from Scotsman in his line of work in the past. 
He stated two benefits of Scotsman are that they are nationwide and they 
have their own trucks to haul the construction trailers. 

Mayor Browning stated he thinks the use of a construction trailer is a good 
idea for the Town and District's post-disaster recovery because it would 
provide a fresh, clean environment free of mold, odors, etc. 

Mr. Saunier asked Frank Spence if he would look into pricing, terms, etc. for 
Scotsman construction trailers. Mr. Spence agreed. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

TOWN-LGWCD FUNDING ILAs. By way of written report, Town Clerk 
Matthew Lippman stated the Town of Loxahatchee Groves (at its May 5, 
2009 public meeting), entered into a funding ILA with the Water Control 
District for two essential Fiscal Year2009-201 0 projects. These projects are: 
(1) "0" Road Canal Improvements - Phase II; and (2) "A" Road Right-of-Way 
Land Survey, both projects totaling $240,000.00. Mr. Saunierstated, to date, 
the District has received $27,382.00 out of the $240,000.00. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

TOWN MANAGEMENT / ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF TRANSITION. Byway 
of written report, Town Clerk Matthew Lippman stated Town Staff has been 
working with the management team of Frank R. Spence, Inc. on the Town 
Management / Administrative Staff transition. The new management team 
begins on Monday, October 5, 2009 and consists of: 

• 

• 
• 

Frank R. Spence, Town Manager 
Michelle Kantor, Town Clerk 
Ann Harper, Deputy Town Clerk 
Holly Hugdahl, Finance Director 

6 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

Dr. Rosenbaum reported that the Town Management I Administrative Staff 
transition is going very smoothly, and that Frank Spence is prepared to 
become the new Town Manager on Monday, October 5,2009. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

TOWN'S EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN AND DEBRIS REMOVAL 
PLAN. By way of written report, Town Clerk Matthew Lippn1an stated there 
will be a one-time unlimited vegetation pick-up on Thursday, October 8, 
2009. All parties involved will be meeting at the Town office on Wednesday, 
October 7, 2009 at 2:00 p.m. 

Mr. Lippman reported that Ms. Pat Johnson retained the services of Jeff 
Goldberg, Coordinator for Palm Beach County Division of Emergency 
Management to facilitate a table-top emergency operations procedures 
exercise for the Town of Loxahatchee Groves. Frank Spence will need to set 
a date and coordinate with the following people to attend the table-top 
exercise: 

• Jeff Goldberg (Facilitator) 
• Frank Spence, Town Manager 
• Town Council Members 
• Clete Saunier, LGWCD Administrator 
• Frank Schiola 
• Randi Milner (Ashbritt, Inc.) 
• Helene Wetherington (Calvin, Giordano & Associates) 
• Ken and Pat Johnson (Loxahatchee Groves CERT) 
• Anyone else that Town Management deems a vital part of this 

process 

Mr. Saunier noted that LGWCD Vice-Chairman Don Widing provided an 
"After Action Report" that he created for the City of Oakland Park, Florida 

when Hurricane Wilma hit South Florida (October 22, 2005 - November 9, 
2005). 

Mayor Browning stated that, with Ken and Pat Johnson's extensive training 
on post-disaster recovery, they will be able to provide a great deal of 
assistance in the event of an emergency. Mr. Saunier agreed, and added 
that he likes the fact that Pat Johnson retained the services of Jeff Goldberg 
(Coordinator of Palm Beach County Division of Emergency Management). 

Frank Spence stated he will be attending an all-day emergency management 
training program sponsored by the National League of Cities on Friday, 

7 



MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MOTION: 
ACTION: 

October 16, 2009 in Tampa. He stated he will obtain up-to-date information 
and will share that information at the table-top exercise. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

IGC MEETING NOTICE, AGENDA. AND AGENDA PACKET 
RESPONSIBILITY. By way of written report, Town Clerk Matthew Lippman 
stated that the Town Clerk has been handling all of the meeting notices, 
agendas, and agenda packets for the IGC COlTlmittee meetings. He stated 
Lynnette Ballard, LGWCD Administrative Secretary, has been recording and 
transcribing the ITlinutes for the IGC Committee meetings. Mr. Lippman 
recommended that, with the new management team coming aboard and the 
time the Town Clerk must dedicate to the Town's bi-monthly regular meeting 
packets, Finance Advisory and Audit Committee meeting packets and 
workshops, the IGC Committee may want to re-evaluate who will be 
performing these tasks in the future. 

Frank Spence stated since Lynnette Ballard prepares the meeting minutes, 
he would like to know if the District would also be willing to prepare the 
meeting agendas and backup material. 

Mr. Saunier replied that he would like to continue to share the responsibilities 
of the IGC Committee meetings with the Town. He recommended the Town 
should continue preparing the meeting packets and the District should 
continue to produce the meeting minutes, then copy and distribute the 
required meeting packet copies. 

After a brief discussion, the IGC Committee decided that the Town and 
District will continue to prepare thelGC Con1n1ittee meeting materials as they 
are currently doing. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

NEXT MEETING DATE AND TIME. The ComlTlittee agreed that the next 
IGC Committee meeting will be held on Friday, November 13, 2009 at 2:00 
p. m. at the District office. 

No motion was necessary. 
NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

8 



The meeting was adjourned by the Committee at 4:20 p.m. 

David DeMarois, LGWCD Chairman Mayor David Browning, Town Co cil 

Dr. Irv Rosenbaum, Outgoing Town Manager 

~4~ 
Frank R. Spence, Incoming Town Manager 

9 


